
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES  

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2024 3 

3:30 P.M. 4 
   5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, December 17, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. 6 
at the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.    7 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 8 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 9 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SSYvrRJRpcI 10 
  11 
[ATTENDANCE]   12 
Elected Body     13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)   14 
Councilmember Brett Gantt   15 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman     16 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth    17 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey   18 
Absent: Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray     19 
    20 
Town Staff     21 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg     22 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis     23 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John     24 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone    25 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe     26 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman     27 
   28 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.    29 
   30 
[COMMENCMENT]    31 
    32 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., welcomed everyone, and led 33 
everyone in the pledge of allegiance.     34 
    35 
   36 
[RESIDENT ADVISORY BOARDS DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION]  37 
 38 
 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk and Ashley Gentry, Deputy Town Clerk gave the 39 
following presentation: 40 
 41 
 42 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SSYvrRJRpcI


DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 2 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 2] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked how this item came up as a topic. 5 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that some of the Council Members and Advisory Boards 6 
had wanted to discuss some of the roles and responsibilities to provide more direction. 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 3 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if it had been thought about the different kinds of 3 
boards and how staff would not have the expertise in. He said that these boards have 4 
changed over time and how the priorities for the Boards may have changed. 5 
 Town Clerk Coleman asked if he had one that staff would not have the expertise. 6 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the Arts Committee would be one. He said there a lot 7 
of artists on that committee, but less staff in that area. 8 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that they need direction on expectations from the Council. 9 
He said that this will be how to measure their success. He discussed how Council will be 10 
deciding the future of boards and if their scope/responsibilities would be adjusted. 11 
[SLIDE 4] 12 

 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 4 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 5] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 6] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 7] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 5 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 8] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the proposal was that once a term is over, the 3 
member is dismissed from the Board, instead of serving until a replacement is appointed, if 4 
they had not yet been. 5 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that 90 days prior to the term expiring, the Clerk’s office 6 
will reach to the member to let them know and ask them if they are planning on continuing to 7 
serve, and having them update their application if so. He said the goal would be to have their 8 
replacement appointed before their term expires. 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he would like there to be a hard cut off for most 10 
cases. He said for the attendance piece, over 25% absences would be automatic dismissal. 11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that there should be excused absences, but if they 12 
are not excused they should go towards the 25% absence policy.  13 
 Deputy Town Clerk Gentry asked if there should be excused and unexcused 14 
absences established. 15 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said yes. 16 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that she disagreed with this attendance policy of 17 
excused and unexcused absences. She said that if you are not able to attend and unable to 18 
give input to the meetings then you shouldn’t be on the Board. 19 
 Mayor Gilbert said that he agreed with Councilmember Killingsworth. 20 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that absences would be reported in the quarterly report to 21 
Council. He said if someone had been out for two meetings in that quarter, they would have 22 
been contacted by the Town Clerk’s office to warn them about their absence status. 23 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked how other City or Towns implement this policy. He 24 
asked if it required Council action or would it count as an automatic resignation. 25 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that it is some of both. He said some have it as a Council 26 
action and some have given the Town Clerk the authority to remove the member. 27 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there were legal issues for this, for example in 28 
the case of pregnancy of a member, and if there were any potential discrimination issues. 29 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 6 of 25 
 

 Town Attorney Hohe said that if there is an excused or unexcused absence it should 1 
be fine. She said that as far as holdovers are concerned, it is allowed by the constitution to 2 
allow holdovers to continue in their seat until their replacement is appointed. She said that is 3 
to ensure the continued operations of the Board.   4 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that they should have a function to vote for 5 
replacements on time unless there are specific circumstances. 6 
 Town Attorney Hohe said that the process that should be put into place is how you 7 
appoint the successor, and not to remove the holdover status of the member of the body so 8 
that there is not situation where the boards do not have a quorum. 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that making these processes more streamlined 10 
would be good. 11 
 Town Attorney Hohe said that this is in this Council’s control.  12 
 Councilmember Gantt said that if appointments are on time and everyone is 13 
organized, this should not be a problem. 14 
 Town Attorney Hohe said she would not recommend changing the holdover status 15 
with the Boards that are statutorily required, the Board of Adjustments and Planning Board.  16 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he would like to have internal pressure on Staff 17 
and Council to make sure these happen on time. 18 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thinks removal should be automatic if someone 19 
goes over the unexcused absence threshold.  20 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that if this is set up for automatic removal, then they could 21 
be reconsidered in the future. He said that getting an excuse and unexcused definition has 22 
not been established.  He said that if all the Council agreed that the policy would be for 23 
automatic removal that would be the decision for the policy.  24 
 The Council was in approval for this policy as a group.  25 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that right now, the Boards are on 3-year terms.  He said this 26 
could be discussed, but that the Board of Adjustment would have to be a 3-year term. 27 
 Councilmember Gantt asked why it had to be a 3-year term. 28 
 Assistant Town Attorney Welch explained it’s due to the Alternates being on the 29 
board.  30 
 Mayor Gilbert asked Director Khin if extended terms would impact operations. 31 
 Director Khin said that 10 years is too long, and 6 years terms may not be long 32 
enough. She said that for the Board of Adjustments, typically their first two to three years do 33 
not have many cases, so their experience is limited even as a second-term member.  She said 34 
that the Planning Board has lots of agenda items. She said that 10-year terms may be too 35 
long.  36 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there was any other Board other than Board of 37 
Adjustment that has statutory requirements like that.  38 
 Assistant Town Attorney Welch said it was just Board of Adjustment. 39 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if they could make the two positions alternate and 40 
the Board have separate terms so a term as an alternate doesn’t count as a term on the Board. 41 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 7 of 25 
 

He said that he wasn’t sure what the right answer was but that he did like the idea of term 1 
limits in principle. 2 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that from Ashley’s surveys of other municipalities that a lot 3 
have gone to 2-year terms, and some have kept 3-year terms, and some have a maximum of 4 
nine years and some ten, and it can be varied. He said that this would become consistent.  5 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there could be a 2-year term limit as an active 6 
board member with 1 term as an alternate, for a total of 9 years. 7 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that it may be easier to keep Board of Adjustments as it is.  8 
 Council Member Mahaffey said that his preference was to leave the Board of 9 
Adjustments as it is.  10 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he preferred 2-year terms to increase the 11 
rotation. 12 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if there was a plan for when the youth would age out. 13 
He asked if they would serve for six years as long as they are 18 years old when they start. 14 
 Town Clerk Coleman said they could start when entered High School and go until 15 
they are in college. 16 
 Councilmember Gantt said that they would likely resign when they go to college 17 
unless it was a local college.  18 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said it was a great resume builder. He agreed they would 19 
likely resign once they were in college so rotation would happen. 20 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about the composition of the total number of 21 
board members. 22 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if they wanted to have different number of members for 23 
the boards.  24 
 Town Clerk Coleman said they would discuss those topics later. He spoke about the 25 
minutes and that they all became centralized to the Clerk’s office back in August for 26 
consistent format and structure. He said that it had been brought up if the Advisory Board 27 
needs to be as thorough as Council minutes.  28 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that they requested that minutes be sent out once 29 
they have been approved by the Board so that they can be put on the Consent Agenda for 30 
the Council to accept them.  31 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the Boards accept the minutes. 32 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would want them included so the public could see 33 
them easier. 34 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the summary at the end of the year would be more 35 
appropriate. 36 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said it wouldn’t do any harm. 37 
 Town Attorney Hohe said the Board of Adjustment minutes have a different standard 38 
with the quasi-judicial hearing, and should be more detailed.  39 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that researching is much easier to do a text search when 40 
meeting minutes are more detailed. 41 
   42 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 8 of 25 
 

 Town Manager Vosburg asked if they had talked about adding an informational 1 
section to the agenda.  2 
 Town Clerk Coleman said yes. 3 
 Town Manager Vosburg said these minutes could go there, since they didn’t 4 
necessarily need to be approved by Council. 5 
[SLIDE 9] 6 

 7 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the annual report would be like a lightening round, if 8 
they would have 3 or 4 minutes to go over the material and each Board comes in after the 9 
other. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he would prefer that each Board be staggered. 11 
 Director Khin said that Wake County resident to the Planning Board is not a statutory 12 
requirement.  13 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked could there be an exception. He said that some 14 
other board needed an ETJ representative. 15 
 Councilmember Gantt asked which Board. 16 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he wasn’t sure. 17 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that it says that unless otherwise as part of the 18 
Charter. 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 9 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 11] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked to be a part of that Committee you had to have a 5 
committee called The Bee City Committee.  6 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that the EAB could be designated as that, and that it didn’t 7 
have to be solely for the purposes of Bee City.  8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 10 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
 Town Clerk Coleman clarified that based on the earlier conversation, they will not be 3 
changing the terms structure for the Board of Adjustment. 4 
[SLIDE 13] 5 

 6 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if he wanted discussion on whether to change the 7 
development review process for EAB. 8 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that Council could discuss if there were advantages to 9 
cases still going through EAB for review. 10 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that the recommendation to remove the review 11 
phase would be her preference. 12 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he would disagree with the recommendation. He 13 
said that the review process was where there were conversations and discussions, and a lot of 14 
conversations that happen at EAB would then have to be had at Council, which should be the 15 
final vote. He said it may push things back further. 16 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 11 of 25 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said that the EAB gets projects early and not formed yet and 1 
the recommendations are hard for the Developer to commit to, because they don’t know 2 
enough details.   3 
 Councilmember Zegerman Said the Planning Team environmental standards are set. 4 
He asked if they could look at the environmental items that could be looked at during the 5 
Planning Board Review meeting to free up the EAB to review more project phases and more 6 
items that are more advisory in nature.  7 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the check-off list should be shorter if this is going to 8 
every developer so that they can say yes or no instead of having things be open ended. 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that there is a standard table that comes in the staff 10 
packet. 11 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the EAB makes a recommendation and fills in some 12 
of the information. 13 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that this is a negotiation, for instance some of the 25 14 
items there may be more important than others based on the project, and that is what the 15 
review is for. 16 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if the EAB influence on if they choose those 17 
things would be more or less than the Planning Board. 18 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he wished the EAB was able to give a full 19 
recommendation on the project, rather than just adding in specific conditions.  20 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that Shelly Mayo in Planning had served as the staff liaison 21 
to the EAB and so Director Khin may have some input. 22 
 Director Khin said that it could be set up like the Housing Advisory Board, that they 23 
have their own policy with a checklist of items they want to see for review with a staff member 24 
that reviews these and then makes recommendations. She said that there is an Environmental 25 
Programs Coordinator that will be starting in February, so the idea is to move away from 26 
reviewing every single rezoning application. She said that they did have to do it to set up the 27 
criteria, but these have been set up and they could be reviewed twice a year. She said it 28 
seemed like there was too much time being spent on rezoning.  29 
 Councilmember Gantt agreed. 30 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked where to draw the line for the rezoning. 31 
 Director Khin said it may encourage people to rezone. There would be more leeway 32 
on more complicated projects like PUDs, so that might could be reviewed. 33 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that the checklist wasn’t in place but it is now, 34 
because the EAB put that in place. She said that it is an advisory board and that the focus 35 
should be on environmental issues. 36 
 Mayor Gilbert asked who was in support of Councilmember Killingsworth’s 37 
suggestion.  38 
 Councilmember Gantt asked for clarification that the larger acreage or PUD would go 39 
to them for review and everything else would go to the staff person and the EAB would revise 40 
the broad conditions accordingly.  41 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 12 of 25 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked could the EAB make a recommendation of what 1 
they want to draw the line.  2 
 Councilmember Gantt said that they are working for the Council, and the Council 3 
should be the ones to decide.  4 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they are speaking on behalf of nine people that we 5 
believe spent too much time on re-zoning request, so what is the proper way.  6 
 Mayor Gilbert said that it can be changed when it comes in the process. 7 
 Councilmember Gantt said having the PUD map would really help the EAB evaluate 8 
those projects once they have those maps. 9 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was a threshold they don’t review. 10 
 Councilmember Gantt said that he thought it was less than five acres. 11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the review is positive, and the members have 12 
impact.   13 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if it could be a five-acre policy that would lower the 14 
reviews.  15 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that they did not have to decide today. 16 
 Director Khin said that she could ask Amanda Bunce. 17 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that when they look at the scope of work, that he 18 
would like to also look at the 11 Board members, he said it seemed like a high number. 19 
 Councilmember Gantt agreed.  20 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that it seemed to be consistent to continue with the 2-year 21 
terms and a maximum 3 terms.   22 
[SLIDE 14] 23 

 24 
 Mayor Gilbert asked Councilmember Killingsworth to start the discussion, since she 25 
has been the Council liaison. 26 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that the responsibilities could be turned over to 27 
staff and any decisions could be taken to Council. She said that she felt the HAB has done 28 
everything they set out to do, and she doesn’t think it needs to remain. 29 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 13 of 25 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman said that the town has hired staff that have absorbed a lot 1 
of work that the Housing Advisory Board did. He asked if it would be possible to have an 2 
advisory committee specific to the entire department to include affordable housing as part of 3 
the scope to absorb some of the duties.  4 
 Councilmember Killingsworth suggested an ad-hoc Council Committee to be used 5 
as needed and meets as needed.  6 
 Mayor Gilbert asked staff where they were about this. 7 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that they had worked to align all of the Town 8 
Departments and functions with the new committees. He said they would talk in January or 9 
February about the concepts.  10 
 Town Clerk Coleman clarified that the Housing Board Committee would be dissolved 11 
due to this work being done by staff.  12 
 Council agreed. 13 
[SLIDE 15] 14 

 15 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if everyone approved of this. Everyone was in agreeance for this 16 
recommendation.  17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 14 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if similar to the EAB, if the Planning Board was 3 
spending their time on rezonings and never getting to items # 4 & 5. He also asked if they 4 
were allowed to have a similar size of development that would not have to go through this 5 
committee as the EAB does.  6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said no. 7 
 Director Khin said that all rezonings had to go before Planning Board. 8 
 Councilmember Gantt said that he would like to see more ordinance suggestions 9 
and policy suggestions from the Planning Board. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman agreed. 11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the Planning Board could be initiating more 12 
items and opposing more rules. He said that there were so many rezonings, so in a lot of 13 
cases they don’t have the bandwidth to. 14 
 Director Khin said that the main things that they have done is participation in the 15 
long-range planning process over the years. She said that they should be required to 16 
participate and not just get updates at the meetings. 17 
 Mayor Gilbert said that this should be discussed later. 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 15 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked what “broadening” means. 3 
 Town Clerk Coleman said it would include to broaden the art related initiatives. 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if they were keeping the 2-year terms as previously 5 
discussed. 6 
 Town Clerk Coleman said yes. 7 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the Arts Committee had done a great job and 8 
was a great example of how an advisory board works.  9 
[SLIDE 18] 10 
 11 

  12 
 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 
 19 

 20 
 21 

Councilmember Gantt confirmed that this was a 2-year term with 3 term maximum. 22 
Town Clerk Coleman confirmed that was correct. He said that this was the Board with 23 

the least number of seats with 3 ex-oficio staff members, but the committee would benefit 24 
from broader membership. 25 

 26 
 27 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 16 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said it may be helpful to form a subcommittee for the Bee 3 
City and the Tree CAP. 4 
 Town Clerk Coleman said that usually if you form an ad hoc Committee of the 5 
membership then it would become a subcommittee of the non-member board and that 6 
wouldn’t be another set of members. 7 
[SLIDE 20] 8 

 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if this comes back in February. 10 
 Town Clerk Coleman said yes, and that some of the Committees are referenced in 11 
the UDO and Town Code. He said that they would be communicating with the Department 12 
Directors that are affected by the feedback from Council.  13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 17 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 
  5 
[DOWNTOWN APEX SOCIAL DISTRICT] 6 
 7 
 Joanna Helms, Economic Development Director gave the following presentation: 8 
[SLIDE 1] 9 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 18 of 25 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 2] 2 

 3 
[SLIDE 3] 4 

 5 
 6 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 19 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked about the feedback on the Social Districts. 3 
 Director Helms said they had done some research in several communities and all of 4 
the feedback was positive. 5 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if sales and socializing have gone up in these types of 6 
areas? 7 
 Director Helms said some areas, Cary for example, haven’t had negative comments. 8 
She said that she could get the survey to Council. 9 
[SLIDE 5] 10 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 20 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 21 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 22 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 13] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the signs helped having the signs for “No Social 5 
District” helped with businesses having to tell customers that they were not participating. 6 
 Director Helms said that this is why they recommended the “NO!” signs.  7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 23 of 25 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 
  Councilmember Gantt asked if the festivals such as Peak Fest could opt out of alcohol 5 
in that area. 6 
 Director Helms asked Chris Welch for information. 7 
 Mayor Gilbert said that they could ask staff.  8 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that they needed general consensus about this and 9 
some guidance if there is any at this time. 10 
 Mayor Gilbert said that there were a lot of positive reviews and there has been a lot 11 
of staff time on this, and that they needed to make some decisions. 12 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he did not agree. He said that he would like to get 13 
feedback again from the businesses. He said he isn’t opposed, but he wants to be fleshed out 14 
more. 15 
 Mayor Gilbert asked what percentage of the businesses he would be looking for to 16 
move forward with this. 17 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 24 of 25 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman said more than 50%. He said that there were things to 1 
work out on this. He agreed that he wanted to make forward momentum, but he doesn’t think 2 
downtown has changed much in the past year. 3 
 Mayor Gilbert said that Cary, Holly Springs, Fuquay, and Garner do this. 4 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that it will be 6 months’ worth of looking at what 5 
the percentage is. 6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he would rather do the survey again and we may 7 
have better results. He said that there may be a more positive experience. He said that ideally, 8 
we want to build consensus, so everyone opts in. He said some businesses have had changed 9 
in ownership too. He added he thinks this should move forward eventually, but he wants to 10 
reach out to owners again. He said it would be really awkward if the district was created but 11 
most shops opted out. 12 
 Mayor Gilbert said he agreed to a point. He said that he had spoken to several 13 
Mayors from other municipalities and talks to several downtown businesses. He asked what 14 
we were waiting for to make the decision. 15 
 Councilmember Gantt said that they can do it now, work out the kinks, then it will be 16 
ready for the streetscape. 17 
 Mayor Gilbert said that a lot of business owners are nervous when construction 18 
comes up. He said this will help people come to downtown. 19 
 Councilmember Zegerman said there is nowhere to go, no parks to sit in, no 20 
benches on the streets, and not any destinations.  21 
 Councilmember Gantt said stores, and there would be more later.  22 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he prefers a slow roll out and asked if things have 23 
changed now. He said that a year ago it was 50-50.  24 
 Councilmember Gantt said that nothing has changed and probably would be the 25 
same result. 26 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he just wanted to do the homework making sure that 27 
we get the survey. 28 
 Mayor Gilbert said that he understands. He said he had talked to some of the 29 
business owners, and they are ready to go with this.  He asked if there was a motion. 30 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked to make an amendment to the motion to do a two-31 
question survey regarding if they wanted to do this, and if they would opt in or out if it 32 
happened. 33 
 Mayor Gilbert said that would delay more. 34 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what the rush was. 35 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if they wanted to tie the results to the metrics and say if 36 
it is more than 55% that it would move forward.  37 
 Mayor Gilbert asked why a decision would not be made.  38 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the survey was done 12 or so months before and 39 
people said that they would not opt in, so it was stopped. 40 
 Mayor Gilbert asked when the last survey was done. 41 
 Director Helms said in June of 2023. 42 



DRAFT | DECEMBER 17, 2024 TOWN COUCNIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 25 of 25 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the survey could be done in one month. He said 1 
it would not be a good look if we went forward and they did not want to do it.  2 
 Councilmember Gantt said 55% said yes and 35% said they did not want it. 3 
 Mayor Gilbert said that if people do not want this they can opt out of this.  4 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said if everyone opts out it wouldn’t be much of a social 5 
district.  6 
  7 

A motion was made by Councilmember Killingsworth, seconded by 8 
Councilmember Gantt to approve the creation of a Social District in Downtown Apex. 9 
  10 

VOTE: (2-2); with Councilmember Mahaffey and Councilmember Zegerman 11 
dissenting, and Mayor Pro Tempore Gray absent 12 
 13 

Per Town of Apex Charter, Mayor Gilbert voted in the affirmative in order to break the 14 
tie. Motion passed. 15 
  16 
 [ADJOURNEMENT]    17 
    18 
Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5:14 p.m. 19 
  20 
   21 

Jacques K. Gilbert   22 
Apex, Mayor   23 

  24 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC     25 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council     26 
    27 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman    28 
    29 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2025.    30 
 31 


